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H-1B Registered Nurse Upgrade Project RFP  
Questions and Answers 

Q1.  Is the VA eligible to apply for these funds for their employees?  

 

A1. Eligibility Requirements listed in the RFP indicate that public healthcare employers, 

such as VA Hospitals, ARE eligible to apply for funding under this RFP.  However, a 

50% match, half of which must be cash, is required and must be made with non-

federal funds.  (See Section I (C) Program Description for further information).  

Applicants are asked to identify the type of match they will provide in their proposal. 

Additional information on Match criteria is described in Section II (C), Budget 

Section.  

 

Q2.   Is it acceptable to include a partner of the business who works as an RN case manager as an          

         Eligible participant? 

  

A2.     Partners are not specifically excluded under this solicitation. 

 

Q3.   I am a registered nurse, who is currently pursuing the doctor of education program, so I 

could eventually teach in the college of nursing.   Would someone like me qualify for this 

academic improvement nursing grant? 

 

Related question:   Are there any graduate studies offered? 

 

A3.  Under this solicitation the eligible training pathways for participants are limited  

  to:  Licensed Practical Nurse to Registered Nurse or Registered Nurse to Bachelor  

  of Science in Nursing.  Graduate studies are not eligible for reimbursement under this 

grant. 

 

Q4.   We have multiple corporations, multiple FEIN's, different locations, distinct lines of 

business (different NAICs codes) which all employ nurses and LPNs. It appears that the 

distinction here is the meaning of "part of the greater whole". Should we prepare multiple 

applications (our preference) and wait for the Department's determination after we submit. 

Is there a way to obtain that determination BEFORE we prepare multiple applications? If 

we are limited to one application we would like to frame it around our most significant 

need. 

A4.  Rules governing the State’s procurement process preclude us from making a pre-

determination in this matter.  Based on the information provided, it would appear 

appropriate for your organization to submit multiple applications for funding 

consideration. However, a final determination cannot be made regarding whether or 

not your organization would qualify for only one or multiple awards until the 

applications have been received, reviewed and fully vetted.  If it is determined at that 

point that your organization would only qualify for one award, Department 

representatives would work with your representatives to determine which proposed 
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project best aligns with the Department’s funding parameters and which best meets 

your organization’s business needs. 

Related Question: We have multiple hospitals and multiple FEIN numbers and may have a 

3-4 different NAICS codes, however, we are managed by system services in a centralized 

fashion. Can we submit one application for our health system? 

Yes.  Under the circumstances described, with the multiple sites being, “managed by 

system services in a centralized fashion…” your organization may submit one 

application for your health system. 

Q5. Is it possible that a partial list of responses to questions could be released prior to May 24th 

to provide additional lead time before the May 31 deadline? 

A5.  We are already periodically posting Q & A on our website under Funding 

Opportunities, and will continue to do so through May 24.  There is a link to Questions 

and Answers beneath the links to the solicitation:                                              

http://www.labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm  

Q6. Do you know if this grant is for only H-1B or all RN training?  

 

Related question:  I am very confused as to whom the actual funding recipients can be (the 

LPNs and RNs whom the funds ultimately benefit.) Can they be American nurses already 

employed here, or must they be H-1B foreign workers?   I do not understand why this RFP 

is an H-1B Funding Opportunity if it does not benefit solely H-1B workers. 

 

Related question:  We had received the grant notice below and realize that the grant states 

“1.7 million through an H-1B Technical Skills Training Grant fund has been awarded”.  

We were not able to discern if the grant requirements were focused solely on upgrading 

skills for H1B nurses.  Is this grant limited to H1B or is it open to upgrading any nurse 

academic credentials? 

 

A6. The goal of the Registered Nurse Upgrade Project RFP is to prepare American nurses 

for the same high skill nursing jobs that are presently being filled by H-1B visa 

holders.  This will reduce America’s dependence on foreign labor.  Funding for the 

grant awards is derived from H-1B visa fees paid by employers who are utilizing 

foreign workers for these positions. H-1B visa holders are not eligible for this grant. 

 

The eligibility requirements for the nurse(s) are as follows: 

1. At least 18 years old;  

2. Currently working in New York State and employed by the applicant business 

as a LPN or RN or a member of the applicant union-sponsored training fund and 

employed as a LPN or RN; 

3. Remain employed for the duration of the training; and 

4. Part-time (less than 35 hours per week) and per diem (per day or per shift) 

employees must have a permanent, year round attachment to the applicant 

business. 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
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Q7. With regard to this grant, the application asks for the names of individual nursing trainees 

along with the name of the NYSED-approved training provider and the specific course 

number and title they are to take.  Are applicants expected to have this information 

finalized at the time of grant submission? The application period seems to be a rather short 

time in which to identify interested trainees and get them accepted and enrolled in specific 

classes. Or, is this information to be submitted following a grant award and subsequent 

enrollment in approved training courses. 

 

Related Question:  Given the timeline for applications to be submitted, can we offer an 

estimated number of participants?  It appears that the RFA requires student names for all 

three years of the grant upon submission of the proposal.  This does not allow for a 

recruitment period for new individuals, which is necessary for a decision by the RN to 

commit to 2 – 3 years of education.  In addition, new students would not be accepted at 

school until Spring 2013 for Fall of 2013 sessions.  Therefore, it is difficult to define 

individuals at this time. 

 

A7. Yes.  Although the Master List of Trainees: Participants and Training Information is 

to be completed and included in the proposal package, along with other documents 

detailed in Section III, we realize that this is preliminary information for budgeting 

purposes. Proposed trainees who are initially listed on the Master List of Trainees 

may not be accepted into a program or may not continue to take courses throughout 

the entire grant period. Substitutions may be allowable. Such changes should be 

communicated to the Department of Labor who will make decisions on a case by case 

basis. Subsequent and ongoing reports will reflect approved changes to the trainee 

list. Reductions in the number of trainees may, however, ultimately reduce the dollar 

amount of reimbursement that made to an awardees. 

 

Q8. May wages paid by the applicant hospital to its employed nurses taking courses outside 

normal working hours be used as match? 

Explanation: We are a duly-incorporated not-for-profit academic medical center/teaching 

hospital that operates a partnership for nursing program in cooperation with local schools 

of nursing.  Nurses in the LPN-to-RN component of the program are employed part-time at 

the hospital (i.e., 40%), while those in the RN-to-BSN component are employed full-time.  

Nurses take courses outside normal working hours. 

 

The RFP advises that cash match may include wages for LPNs and RNs receiving training 

during normal work hours.  We read this as an example of permissible match and not to 

exclude wages paid for nurses enrolled in the training program who attend courses outside 

normal working hours, but request your confirmation or clarification of this match issue. 

 

A8. The intent of this proposal is to encourage nurses to upgrade their skills and achieve 

additional credentials.  Where the employer  allows its nurses to attend courses during 

normal working hours and  pays regular wages during those training periods, the 

wages paid for the time spent attending such training may be used as match.    
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In your example, if the LPNs are also being paid their normal wage while in training, 

the portion of wages paid to them while attending training would be an allowable 

match.  

 

Related Question:  On Attachment 1 (acceptance of attestation) Page 1, Box 9 says: “If 

the tuition takes place on employee time, the applicant will pay the trainees’ tuition/fees.” 

Does this refer to payment of tuition/fees by the employer with grant funds, if the grant is 

received?  Or, does it mean the employer will pay full tuition? Or the amount allotted for 

tuition reimbursement based on the organization’s policy? 

 

Contracts resulting from this offering will be managed by the Department on a cost 

reimbursement basis i.e., tuition/fee costs for a given course, or group of courses 

being taken by a trainee(s) during a given semester, must be paid in full using non-

grant funds before a request for reimbursement can be submitted to the Department 

for payment consideration.  It must be remembered that whatever sum amount of 

tuition and related fees is submitted for reimbursement through the grant, paid by 

the employer, a 50% match requirement applies, of which 50% of this match must 

be cash.  

 

Related Question:  Do we have to allow training to happen during the employee’s 

scheduled work shift?  If the answer to the above question is “yes,” then must we pay the 

applicants’ full tuition/fee as well as their normal rate of pay while they are attending 

training? 

 

Training may take place during the employees’ regularly scheduled work shifts.  If so, 

trainees must be paid their normal rate of pay, with no reduction of salary or benefits.  

An alternative is for the training to take place outside the employees’ normal work 

hours.  

 

The intent of this proposal is to encourage nurses to upgrade their skills and achieve 

additional credentials.  Where the employer  allows its nurses to attend courses during 

normal working hours and  pays regular wages during those training periods, the 

wages paid for the time spent attending such training may be used as your match.    

 

Allowable costs include tuition costs for eligible participants through a post 

secondary school approved by the NYSED and acceptable training fees directly 

related to the participant’s education and training.  (Examples include IT fees, activity 

fees, clinical, and lab fees, which are verifiable from the applicant’s records).  The 

amount of the financial assistance you provide to the employee is at your discretion 

and is not mandated under this solicitation, however please be aware of the match 

requirements. 

 

Q9. Can you please clarify how the MWBE and EEO requirements pertain to a program of 

tuition reimbursement from accredited academic institutions? I understand how they could 

be relevant in an instance where in the fulfillment of a state contract my organization would 

be sun-contracting for goods and services or where my organization was seeking program 
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funding for administration of a program. However in this case my organization is seeking 

funding to reimburse employees of the organization whom are looking to upgrade their 

education from LPN to RN or from RN to BS based on education programs that they 

choose. Therefore, I’m stuck on how to process section 8 of the technical proposal.  

 

A9. The EEO and MWBE 20% requirements are mandated and administered by the 

Governor’s Chief Diversity Officer.  Therefore, based on the proposal’s requirements, 

applicants are asked to submit an EEO Staffing Plan and the MWBE Utilization Plan 

with contract goals set at 11% MBE and 9% WBE.   

  The MWBE Utilization Plan states that, “If unable to fully meet the MBE & WBE 

goals set forth in the contract, contractor must submit a request for waiver (MWBE 

101 form).”  The applicant’s goals are 0%. Therefore, the applicant can request a total 

waiver of goals simultaneously with the submission of the MWBE Utilization Plan.  

On the waiver request form the applicant must state the reason for the waiver, at 

which point he can state what the funding is for “to reimburse employees of the 

organization” or tuition. This information can be placed on the waiver form, Section 

2: Type of MWBE Waiver Requested, under explanation. 

Q10. Regarding the H-1B Registered Nurse Upgrade Project RFP #T-05 - are we required to 

take care of ALL of the cost of the participants’ tuition? I’m not clear as to whether the 

grant will only pay 50% of the total cost of tuition and we pay the other 50%, or whether 

we can cover PART of it (i.e. the nurses pay 1/3 of the tuition and we split the other 2/3 

between our organization and the grant).  

 

A10. The H-1B grant does not stipulate the dollar amount or percentage of allowable costs 

that must be paid by an employer.  That is up to the sole discretion of the business 

and may be determined by the organization’s tuition reimbursement or other policy. It 

must be remembered that whatever amount of tuition and related fees is paid by the 

employer, a 50% match requirement applies, of which 50% of this match must be 

cash.   

 

Your example:  Total tuition:  $1500   

   Nurse pays $500 

   Employer pays $1000 

If the employer has no other cash match or in-kind contribution, then $666.67 could 

be reimbursed to the employer since half of that (or $333.33) equates to a 50% 

match (which is NOT reimbursed).  This assumes that 50% of the $333.33 is a cash 

match. 

If there is no other source of match besides tuition and fee payments by the 

employer, the easiest way to determine the reimbursement amount is to determine 

the dollar amount that the employer will pay and divide that by 3.  That amount (A) 

is the required 50% match (of which 50% MUST be in cash).  The remaining two 

thirds (B) is the amount that is reimbursable to the employer under the grant. (note 

that this amount is double A, so that A will always be 50% of B). 

  Another example:  Total Tuition: $2100 
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               Employer has a 75% tuition reimbursement policy ($1575) 

               1/3 of this amount is $525.  (A)  Note:  50% of this must be 

     a cash match  2/3 of $1575 is $1050 (B).  A is 50% of B  

     (the employers 50% match) $1050 (B) is reimbursable to  

     the employer.      

However, other allowable cash matches, such as wages paid to workers while 

attending training, and documented in-kind contributions can be used to meet the 

matching requirements, which can result in a higher level of tuition and fee 

reimbursement to the employer.   

 

In no instance may the allowable reimbursement exceed the total cost of the tuition. 

 

Q11. In the RFP on Page 4, it states, “All training under this RFP is voluntary on behalf of 

trainee and may not be required by the applicant”.  We require our RNs to have BSNs.  If 

they do not have a BSN at the time of hire, they have five years to complete.  Will this be 

viewed as a mandate and disqualify us? 

  

A11. Because your organization has stipulated, as a condition of hire, that RNs must have 

BSNs (or must obtain within 5 years), RNs being hired at your facility accept a 

position based on the fore knowledge that they must complete their BSN training or 

lose employment after five years.  For purposes of this solicitation, acceptance of 

this condition is viewed as a nurse’s voluntary willingness to complete their BSN.  

 

Q12. The application documents are PDF documents onto which we cannot enter information. 

Must we replicate the various tables included in the Technical Proposal (i.e. the Master List 

of Trainees) in order to type in our responses or can applicants write in information 

instead? 

Related Question: The submittal instructions (Item III B., page 9) require “One copy of the 

entire proposal on a CD, formatted in Microsoft Word.”  Will the forms and attachments, 

required to be completed and included in the proposal package, be made available in 

“Word” format, or must they all be re-typed? 

A12. You can now find updated Word formatted documents at: 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm.  Applicants can now fill in 

the requested information, save it to their desktop and print the required copies. 

(Please follow the additional instructions found in the H-1B Registered Nurse 

Upgrade Project RFP# T-05, Section III Process for Proposal Submission.) 

 

Related Question: I want to point out that it is protected and does not allow the user to 

change the font and the spacing to conform with the RFP guidelines of 12 point font and 

double spacing. It is currently 10 point font and single spaced. Is this acceptable?  

 

Yes, it is acceptable. 

 

Q13. The RFP refers to employed LPNs and RNs. Could licensed RNs with an associate’s 

degrees who are employed as something other than RNs be included as participants in the 

http://www.labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
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grant. In many cases, they are not yet working in title because a BSN is required. The grant 

would allow them to get the BSN and therefore a job/promotion working in title. 

 

A13. No, under this solicitation, licensed RNs with an associate’s degree who are 

employed as something other than RNs may not be included as participants in the 

grant.  As noted in the solicitation in (Section IB), page three, the eligible 

participants are nurses who are at least 18 years old, currently working in New York 

State and employed as a Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN) or a Registered Nurse 

(RN).  

 

Q14. I am currently a 25 year employee of WCA Hospital in Jamestown NY and am returning 

to school to complete my RN degree. I was given your email and information regarding 

grant funding for RN training. I would appreciate all information regarding this. 

 

A14. You will need to contact your hospital’s administrators to see if they are interested in 

applying for funding consideration under the NYS Department of Labor’s “H-1B 

Registered Nurse Upgrade Project # T-05” training initiative.  This program does 

offer tuition assistance for LPNs interested in upgrading their credentials to an RN 

degree; and, for RNs with a two year degree interested in upgrading their credentials 

to a four year degree.  However, the hospital would need to submit an application as 

the “applicant” for funding consideration. 

In order to be considered for an award, an applicant must:  

 Be a duly incorporated for-profit or not-for-profit, public or private sector, 

healthcare employer, or a union-sponsored training organization;  

 Be headquartered in New York State or have at least one site located in New York 

State; 

 Have the capacity to provide participant data and reports on a timely basis; 

 Have demonstrated an ability to properly document payment of training costs; and 

 Use the funds to provide tuition reimbursement for nurses who meet the following 

requirements:  

 At least 18 years old;  

 Currently working in New York State and employed by the applicant 

business as a LPN or RN or a member of the applicant union-sponsored 

training fund and employed as a LPN or RN; 

 Remain employed for the duration of the training; and 

 Part-time (less than 35 hours per week) and per diem (per day or per 

shift) employees must have a permanent, year round attachment to the 

applicant business. 

 

Q15. Will payments to the grant recipient be conditional upon training participants’ satisfactory 

completion of the courses for which they have registered? 

 

A15. Yes.  Payments to the grant recipient are on a reimbursement basis only and will be 

made only for courses where the participant satisfactorily completed the course. 
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Q16. Is there a limit on the amount that can be allocated per student? 

 

A16. No.  The RFP does not stipulate a training cost cap, per trainee. 

 

Q17. Are tuition payments for nurses who are enrolled in a combined BSN / MSN degree 

program eligible for reimbursement under this funding opportunity? 

 

A17. No.  Graduate studies are not eligible for reimbursement under this grant.  Under 

this solicitation the eligible training pathways for participants are limited  to:  

Licensed Practical Nurse to Registered Nurse or Registered Nurse to Bachelor of 

Science in Nursing.   

 

Q18. Will this program support tuition reimbursement for currently-employed RNs with a 

bachelor-level degree in another field who are now working toward a BSN degree? 

 

A18. Yes.  If the student became a Registered Nurse via a diploma or associate degree 

pathway and is pursuing a Bachelor of Science in Nursing, the course of study is 

eligible for reimbursement.  The fact that this person may also hold degrees in other 

fields of study is irrelevant to this program. 

 

Q19. May the file version of the application be submitted on a USB flash drive, rather than on a 

CD, as specified in the RFP? 

 

A19. No.  Please provide the electronic copy on compact disc (CD). 

 

Q20. According to Section VII (RFP Attachments) of the RFP, Attachment 11 is not required to 

be completed and submitted by mail.  But the Attachments document itself appears to 

have two different sections headed "Attachment 11".  One begins on Page 40 and is titled 

"Appendix C: New York State Department of Labor General Terms and Conditions", and 

another (and possibly separate) Attachment 11 begins on Page 60 and is titled "Minority 

and Women-Owned Business Enterprises Equal Employment Opportunity Policy 

Statement".  This second document includes blank spaces to be filled in, and a space for 

an applicant signature. Could you please verify that it does not have to be completed and 

submitted at the time of application? 

 

A20. The document to which you refer, the Minority and Women-Owned Business 

Enterprises Equal Employment Opportunity  Policy Statement, on pages 60 -61, is 

 required with the appropriate signature and  should be submitted with the proposal, 

because it is required as part of the review process.   Any potential awardees who 

do not submit this signed attachment (found on pages 60 and 61 -Attachment 11) 

along with their initial proposal will be individually contacted for this information. 

 

Related Question: Because our program will reimburse tuition paid by employees, we 

intend to submit a request for waiver (MWBE 101) form pursuant to Q9/A9 of the RFP 

Questions and Answers document. This being the case, are we still required to submit 

Form MWBE 100 - the MWBE Utilization Plan? 
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Yes, as indicated in the RFP, page 10, The MWBE 100 – Utilization Plan 

(attachment 8C) is a required attachment.  One original, affixed with an original 

signature, must be submitted at the time of the proposal submission.  If a waiver is 

to be requested, (8D) this form must also accompany the proposal. 

Q21. Do degrees have to be completed within the grant period? 

 

A21. No.  Degrees do not need to be completed within the grant period.  Reimbursements 

are determined based on successful completion of participant coursework toward a 

degree.  However, each training program must include sequential and required 

courses to support and substantially contribute to the trainee’s attainment of a 

higher nursing degree.  In order to be reimbursed, courses must be completed within 

the grant period.  The accepted curriculum, program or course of study, must lead to 

a nationally recognized post secondary Registered Nurse (RN) or Bachelor of 

Science in Nursing (BSN) degree and/or license. 
 

Q22. Can an applicant partner with other health care facilities? 

 

A22. Yes.  Partnership applications are acceptable.  However, one of the partners must 

act as the lead applicant and assume both fiduciary and program management 

responsibilities associated with an award i.e., ensuring program partners are 

complying with award conditions.  Additionally, all partners will be subject to a due 

diligence review.  This will require all partners to complete the various attachments 

associated with this offering. 

  

Q23. What online programs from other states are considered approved programs? None are 

listed on the NYSED site. 

 

A23. The New York State Department of Labor does not maintain a list of approved 

educational programs.  You may wish to inquire directly from the distance learning 

program of your choice as to whether or not the program is approved in NYS.  

Related Information:  From the State Education Department: Regents approval of out-of-state 

nursing programs is a somewhat complex issue.  If a student is to do clinical rotations legally in 

NYS as part of a nursing education program, and the program leads to a new licensure or 

certification title, the program must be approved for that purpose by the Regents.  For 

professional nursing this would be RN, NP and Nurse-Midwifery programs.  We have approved 

several such programs, most of which are at the graduate level leading to NP certification.  If the 

program does not lead to a new licensure or certification title, and the student is licensed and 

currently registered as an RN in NY, then the student can do a clinical rotation in a clinical 

facility without any additional approval.  An upper-division baccalaureate program, (a program 

that requires RN licensure and registration for entry) offered in a distance education format that 

is offered by a school located in another state, no additional approval is needed for the student to 

do clinical rotations in a NY facility as long as the student is currently registered as an RN in 

NY. 
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Utica College has an upper-division baccalaureate nursing program that is offered in a distance 

education format.  As an upper-division program, it is restricted to students who are RNs.  Utica 

College also has a licensure qualifying baccalaureate nursing program, but that one is 

not approved to be offered in a distance education format. 

 Several other NY schools offer baccalaureate nursing programs in a distance education format, 

but with the exception of SUNY Stony Brook they are all upper-division programs that require 

students to be RNs upon entry. 

 

Q24. Attachment 3 – Budget Summary; Attachment 3 – Training Cost and Match; Attachment 

3 - Wage Match: The Course Numbers and Titles for the full program of study can’t be 

definitively stated in advance as students work towards completing their LPN to RN or 

RN to BSN programs. Students will be on individual tracks in terms of timing, courses 

and educational institution. Since students will be eligible for $1,600 a year in tuition 

reimbursement, we will be looking for a student’s eligibility for grant funds through H1-

B Registered Nurse Upgrade Project #T-05 to be $3,200 per year. We will be monitoring 

the classes they are taking and looking to provide them grant money in addition to tuition 

reimbursement monies as long as the courses they are submitting reimbursement for are 

part of a degree/certification program for RN or BSN. Therefore, please advise how you 

want “total contract funded training course cost” and “course Match Amounts for Cash, 

Wage, In-Kind and Total to be detailed on Attachment 3 at the time of submission of this 

proposal? 

 

A24. The Master List of Trainees:  Participants and Training Information is to be 

completed and included in the proposal package, along with other documents 

detailed in Section III.  However, we realize that this is preliminary information for 

budgeting purposes.  Proposed trainees who are initially listed on the Master List of 

Trainees may not be accepted into a program or may not continue to take courses 

throughout the entire grant period.   

Regarding how reimbursements under the grant will be managed, it needs to be 

made clear that only employers are eligible for reimbursement for a portion of the 

actual costs they incur in helping employees meet their tuition costs. 

 

Based on the information provided, it is unclear how much cost is being incurred 

directly by the employer.  Please review the answer to question #10. 

 

Related Question:  I read this to mean that for each $1.00 of H1-B grant funding, I (as the 

employer) must provide a 50cent match. For instance if: If total tuition is $1500, and I (as 

employer) provide $500 in tuition reimbursement to the employee/student, then I as 

employer am eligible for $1,000 in H1-B grant funding that I can provide to the 

employee/student, so that the entire cost ($1,500) of the employee/student tuition is 

covered between the grant funding and tuition reimbursement. 

Is this a correct interpretation? 
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No.  Please review Question # 10.  Under this solicitation, reimbursement is based upon 

amounts actually paid by the awardee (employer or union sponsored training fund).   

 

In your example:    

Total tuition:  $1500   Employer pays $500.  

If the employer has no other cash match or in-kind contribution, then $333.33 could be 

reimbursed to the employer since half of that (or $166.67) equates to a 50% match (which 

is NOT reimbursed). This assumes that 50% of the $166.67 is a cash match.  If there is no 

other source of match besides tuition and fee payments by the employer, the easiest way 

to determine the reimbursement amount is to determine the dollar amount that the 

employer will pay and divide that by 3. That amount (A) is the required 50% match (of 

which 50% MUST be in cash). The remaining two thirds (B) is the amount that is 

reimbursable to the employer under the grant. (note that this amount is double A, so that 

A will always be 50% of B).   

 

However, other allowable cash matches, such as wages paid to workers while attending 

training, and documented in-kind contributions can be used to meet the matching 

requirements, which can result in a higher level of tuition and fee reimbursement to the 

employer.  

In no instance may the allowable reimbursement exceed the total cost of the tuition. 

Related Reply: 

We hope that the following response will help clarify matters: 

All reimbursements under this offering are based solely on the actual direct payment by 

an employer—not on the total amount of tuition for a course or group of courses. 

In your example, although the total tuition bill is for $1,500, in point of fact your 

business’ proposed out of pocket expense is only $500. 

 

With $500 as our starting point to help determine the amount of reimbursement, your 

business would be eligible to receive.  

 Your business is responsible for a 50% match toward every dollar received under 

the H-1B program.   

 In this case, the H-1B grant will assume responsibility for reimbursing your 

business 2/3 of the $500, or $333.33.   

 The employer’s responsibility relative to reimbursed sum to be received under the 

H-1B, which is 50% of the portion paid by the H-1B grant, would equal $166.67. 

(i.e., .50 x 333.33 = $166.67). 

 

Q25. Attachment 2 – Master List of Trainees: Participants and Training Information 

The Course Numbers and Titles for the full program of study can’t be definitively stated in 

advance as students work towards completing their LPN to RN or RN to BSN programs. 

Students will be on individual tracks in terms of timing, courses and educational 

institution. We will be monitoring the classes they are taking and looking to provide them 

grant money in addition to tuition reimbursement monies as long as the courses they are 
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submitting reimbursement for are part of a degree/certification program for RN or BSN. 

Therefore, please advise how you want “each course the trainee is expected to complete” 

to be detailed on Attachment 2 at the time of the submission of this proposal? 

Additionally, since nurses will be receiving tuition reimbursement how should we reflect 

“cost per course per trainee” and “total cost per trainee” for purposes of filling out 

Attachment 2 at the time of the submission of this proposal?  

 

A25. The Master List of Trainees:  Participants and Training Information is to be 

completed and included in the proposal package, along with other documents detailed 

in Section III.  However, we realize that this is preliminary information for budgeting 

purposes.  Proposed trainees who are initially listed on the Master List of Trainees 

may not be accepted into a program or may not continue to take courses throughout 

the entire grant period.  Substitutions may be allowable.  Such changes should be 

communicated to the Department of Labor who will make decisions on a case by case 

basis.  Subsequent and ongoing reports will reflect approved changes to the trainee 

list.  Reductions in the number of trainees may, however, ultimately reduce the dollar 

amount of reimbursement that is made to an awardee. 

 

 In addition, applicants are expected to conduct an assessment, with their employees, 

to determine which courses will be needed to achieve their academic goals.  This may 

require employees taking the time to contact their local college (or training provider 

of choice) for a consultation with an academic advisor to determine the number of 

courses needed to achieve their academic goals during the life of the grant.  The 

information captured during that consultation should serve as the basis for employers 

to fill out the course number and title information called for in the budget forms. 

 

Q26. Section II, D of the RFP, Program Cost, references the cost per participant, which will be 

used in scoring the financial portion of the application. Is this cost calculated based on 

total project costs, or only on the grant-funded portion of the budget? 

 

A26. The cost per participant is determined by dividing the total H-1B grant cost by the 

total number of participants being trained. 

 

Q27. Once the cost per participant is determined, does this mean that the amount of financial 

aid per trainee is fixed at this amount for the life of award, or can the amount per 

participant change, depending on the actual number of training participants? 

 

A27. The cost per participant is only used by the Department initially as one of the 

factors to help rate/rank proposals for award making purposes.  It is an average 

figure which does not necessarily reflect an individual’s cost during the life of the 

agreement.  The individual training cost experience would be expected to fluctuate 

based on each participant’s unique course of study.  However, please be aware that 

the total funding level of the contract that is developed from an award will not 

increase through the life of the contract so all fluctuations in individual student 

costs must be accommodated within the funding level of the contract.  
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Please note that the H-1B grant does not provide direct financial aid to students 

similar to a PELL grant or other student aid programs.  Monies under the current 

Department offering are reimbursed only to employers for a portion of their direct 

payment in support of a participant’s training costs. 

 

Q28. Would it be possible to get the “Required Questionnaires, Notices, and General Terms and 

Conditions” in an editable format so we can separate out different sections to send out to 

our team working on the application?  I would also like to be able to detach the contract 

section during the working process so it is not being circulated with every draft. 

 

A16. We have updated all of the twelve attachments and posted separate links to each 

document.  Please remember, one part of the budget section is listed separately as 

attachment 3a.  

 

Q29. Do the nurses have to be enrolled in a school in NYS and/or can they be enrolled in an 

online program? 

A29. No, please note program description on page 4 of the RFP which states in part:  

Training and/or education is defined for this RFP as an accepted curriculum, 

program or course of study, which leads to a nationally recognized post secondary 

Registered Nurse (RN) or Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) degree and/or 

license. Training must be provided through a post secondary school or program 

approved by the New York State Education Department (NYSED).   

http://www.op.nysed.gov/prof/nurse/nurseprogs.htm.  Training may take the form 

of on site, off site or distance learning programs if approved by NYSED. 

 

Q30. We provide home care services and our RN’s/ supervisory staff will provide the training 

to the nurses. Can we ask for funds for our supervisors to train nurses on-site? 

 

A30. No.  Grants funds are only available to reimburse employers for a portion of their 

direct tuition payments on behalf of an employed trainee/nurse who is enrolled in an 

accepted curriculum, program or course of study, which leads to a nationally 

recognized post secondary Registered Nurse (RN) or Bachelor of Science in 

Nursing (BSN) degree and/or license.   

 

However, your cash match may include funds provided for grant activities by the 

applicant. (Additional information may be found in Section II Proposal 

Requirements, (C) Budget, (1) Matching Funds). 

 

As noted under the program description, training may take the form of on site, off 

site or distance learning programs if approved by the New York State Education 

Department.  If training takes place during normal working hours, however, 

trainees must still be paid their normal rate of pay with no reduction of salary or 

benefits.  

  

Q31. We would like to partner with a local community college is this possible in the grant? 

http://www.op.nysed.gov/prof/nurse/nurseprogs.htm
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A31. Based on the information provided, it is unclear what the nature of the partnership 

will be.  If the intent of the partnership is to designate a local community college as 

the training provider of choice for purposes of this solicitation, then no prior 

approval is needed from the Department.  In such a case, it would be acceptable to 

include information regarding the local community college’s offerings and its role 

in the project narrative. 

 

However, if there is an expectation for a local community college to participate as a 

full-fledged partner in the administration and management of the grant then that 

relationship would be subject to review and approval by the Department.  Under 

these circumstances, one of the partners must act as the lead applicant and assume 

both fiduciary and program management responsibilities associated with an award 

i.e., ensuring program partners are complying with award conditions. Additionally, 

all partners will be subject to a due diligence review. This will require all partners 

to complete the various attachments associated with this offering.  

 

Q32. What would you like included in the financial narrative portion? 

 

A32. Please see Section C – Budget (page 6 of the RFP).  The applicant must provide a 

budget narrative, which accurately describes all costs associated with the total 

amount of funding requested.  The narrative should include the source of matching 

funds, cash contributions and/or in-kind contribution.  Planned costs must be 

directly related to the delivery of the training program.  All proposed expenditures 

must be reasonable, necessary and clearly relate to the purposes and activities as 

described in the project narrative (referenced in Attachment 3).  The training needs 

and costs are defined by the applicant and are subject to review and approval by the 

Department. 

Q33. On page 2 of the Attachment section, you note that “requests will not be entertained from 

businesses which have received funds under previous training initiatives and for which the 

terms of those prior contract outcomes have not been met or completed.”  Our agency 

currently has a State DOH Health Workforce Retraining grant to upgrade skills of social 

workers and does not target nurses. Are we eligible to apply for this grant?  

 

A33. This section relates to NYS Department of Labor training grant funding.  If your 

organization received prior DOL contracts, but has not met contractual outcomes, 

you would not be an eligible applicant for this solicitation.  However, please note 

that in responding to Question C of Attachment 7 “Application for Competitively 

Bid Contract” your organization is required to disclose current or prior contracts 

with any New York State department, agency, board or commission (which would 

include the DOH grant.)  The information reported on this form is used as part of 

the due diligence process undertaken by the Department to determine if an applicant 

is a responsible vendor. 

 

Q34. Do we need to identify/partner with one training institution, or can RN pathway program 

courses be from multiple schools of nursing?  
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A34. No.  Applicants do not need to identify or partner with one training institution under 

this offering.  The RN pathway program courses may be from multiple schools of 

nursing.  However, applicants should ensure that their employees enroll in an 

accepted curriculum, program or course of study (approved by the New York State 

Department of Education), which leads to a nationally recognized post secondary 

Registered Nurse (RN) or Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) degree and/or 

license.  

Q35. Do we need to know specific nurses, or can we do a demographic profile of our LPNs and 

ADNs who would qualify? It seems we’d have to know (or guess) who would be 

participating, as the summary indicates that an application must include evidence of 

minority representation.  

 

A35. Yes, information on specific trainees/nurses is required on the Master List of 

Trainees.  However, we realize that this is preliminary information for budgeting 

purposes. Proposed trainees who are initially listed on the Master List of Trainees 

might not be accepted into a program or might not continue to take courses 

throughout the entire grant period.  For those reasons and others, substitutions may 

be allowable. Such changes should be communicated to the Department of Labor 

who will make decisions on a case by case basis. Subsequent and ongoing reports 

will reflect approved changes to the trainee list. Reductions in the number of 

trainees may, however, ultimately reduce the dollar amount of reimbursement that 

made to an awardees. 

 

Q36. Do the participant nurses have to be just starting their education in the fall?  

A36. No.  Nurses may already be enrolled in a program to advance their education OR 

may be new enrollees. 

 

Q37. If an RN has a Bachelor’s degree in another discipline and is taking transitional courses 

toward a BSN equivalency, are those RNs eligible for tuition reimbursement under this 

grant?  If not, can they be used toward the 50% match requirement? 

A37. If the student became a Registered Nurse via a diploma or associate degree pathway 

and is pursuing a Bachelor of Science in Nursing, the course of study is eligible for 

reimbursement. The fact that this person may also hold degrees in other fields of 

study is irrelevant to this program.  A key determining factor would be that this 

trainee must currently be employed as a nurse by the employer to pursue training 

under the current offering.  

Q38. On page 5 of the RFP, the Guidelines state that all text should be double spaced and in 12 

point font.  The charts are set up for other font sizes and spacing.  Is it acceptable to use 

those other pre-formatted sizes and spacing on the charts or do they need to be double 

spaced and 12 point? 

A38. Yes, it is acceptable; please refer to Question # 12. 

Q39. Is it permissible for the employer to reimburse the employee for their tuitions costs after 

receiving reimbursement from the H-1B Registered Nurse Upgrade Project? 
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A39. Under these circumstances, it is unclear if the party making the initial tuition 

payment is the business or the employee.  It needs to be clarified that H-1B 

reimbursements are based solely on the amount actually paid by the business.  The 

applicant (employer or union sponsored training fund) may not include tuition 

payments, made by the employee, as reimbursable expenses under this offering. 

 

Q40. If the allowable and received reimbursement by the employer exceeds the RNs 

contribution, then can the applicant (employer) keep the remaining amount as long as it 

does not exceed the total tuition cost? 

 

A40. The employer’s reimbursement may exceed the RN’s contribution, depending upon 

the amount paid by the employer.  Question #10 gives an example where the initial 

tuition payments are as follows: the nurse/trainee pays $500 and the employer pays 

$1000.  In this case, the business is subsequently, reimbursed $666.67, which 

exceeds the amount paid by the nurse/trainee.  

 

 

 

 

 

 


